
Town of Williston Conservation Commission (WCC) 
Minutes of May 3, 2023 

YouTube Recording: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ysLz7_xAAx4   
 

 
 
1. Call to order: Meeting was called to order at 7.05am 
 
2. Public comment: There was no public comment.  
 
3. Approval of April 19, 2023 minutes: Laura made a motion to approve the April 5, 2023 minutes 

as with a minor change, seconded by Gary. The motion was carried with a 6-0-1 vote with Terry 
abstaining.  

 
4. Schmoker Trail Reroute 

  
4.1. Simon explained the proposed reroute to move the trail out of the woods so it runs along the 

hay field. The land is under conservation easement and the town has a trail easement. Glenn 
Card (landowner) explained that he farms the parcel and wants to reroute the trail to convert 
5acres of woodland to cow pasture. The wooded area is full of invasives which need to be 
managed. The land would not be completely cleared – some large trees would be retained for 
shade and the pasture would be secured by electric fence.   
 

4.2. Glenn said he would be reaching out to the Vermont Land Trust. He planned to mechanically 
remove the invasives instead of using herbicides. The cows will also eat invasives.  
 

4.3. David asked the purpose of the trail reroute. Glenn explained it was to keep hikers separate 
from cows in the new pasture; he thought the relocated route would be better. Eric asked how 
much use the trail gets – Glenn said an 80:20 split between Five Tree Hill and Schmoker.  
 

4.4. Eric said the WCC could create some signage to explain the change and advertise the reroute 
ahead of time. Terry noted that at Catamount Forest they had put a lot of explanatory signage 
up. Gary said he was in favor of the proposal as it enhanced agriculture and got rid of invasives. 
Simon said no trail structures would be needed on the reroute. Laura said she thought the 
property was beautiful.  
 

Members Present: Eric Howe (Chair), Reed Carr, David Westman, Gary Hawley, Laura Meyer, 
Kim Coleman, Terry Marron 

Members Absent:  
Staff Present:  Simon Myles 

Others Present: Reid Willis, Heather Tender, Glenn Card, Jens Hilke 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ysLz7_xAAx4


4.5. Simon explained that the town had a mowing contractor for 5 of its trail. The reroute is unlikely 
to have an impact on his work and would be wide enough to accommodate a mower. Simon said 
Heather Tender was a current user of the trail and supported the relocation. 
 

4.6. Simon said that the next step involved determining if the Selectboard needed oversight although 
they will likely concur with the WCC. Simon suggested that public comment could be sought and 
then it could return to WCC for a recommendation. Glenn said there was enough time to do this 
as he wasn’t intending to implement it until 2024. David said he liked the idea of collecting 
public comment. A straw pole indicated that the WCC were in favor of the proposed change 
following public comment period. The WCC would also reconnect with Glenn on signage.   

 
5. Significant Wildlife Habitat Area Regulations 

 
5.1. Simon explained the background to the SWHA discussions that the WCC had held in 2022. They 

had discussed categorizing SWHA into 3 tiers, habitat connectors and road crossings and 
developing different regulatory standards for each providing different levels of protection. The 
new SWHA map needed to be incorporated into the Town Plan.  
 

5.2. Jens explained that the tiered approach was a better way of prioritizing what is important to 
protect and communicate to residents where the priorities are. Jens asked that we share the 
URL for the story map and draft regulations. David asked about the criteria for the Tier 1 habitat 
areas. Simon and Jens explained that they were primarily large forest blocks with other 
constraints like wetlands, riparian habitat, rare threatened and endangered species, and 
connectivity. The tiering is not based on condition with respect to invasives, Jens noted that the 
forest patches are still important even with invasives. Kim noted that some landowners may not 
be managing for invasives.  
 

5.3. Reed noted that agricultural land was exempt from SWHA regulations but if the land changes 
use or is proposed for development the SWHA would apply. David said Tier 3 habitat blocks 
were agricultural fields that could support bird breeding. He asked how that designation gets 
interpreted in development review. Simon explained that the regulations are tiered so that it is 
most difficult to develop in Tier 1. Tier 3 is of low ecological value so unless the farmer is 
interested in habitat management the town has no control. Jens explained that protecting 
wildlife was more effective on a landscape scale than identifying species. He had not been 
involved in saying Tier 3 should be recognized, this might be a relic from the previous SWHA 
regulations. It was noted that most of the Tier 1 habitat was in the ARZD.  
 

5.4. The Commission reviewed the draft regulations. Softening language regarding landowner’s right 
to development had been removed. Jens said he would be interested in the CCRPC’s take on the 
strength of the bylaw. Simon said he would consult internally on the regulations. Streams and 
rivers in Williston are the main connectors. Simon said that the reference to the size of the 
acreage in the Tier 1 and 2 definitions should be removed. 



 
5.5. David asked about Tier 3 designation and why they were included. Kim noted that at Catamount 

they had adjusted the haying schedule to encourage bobolinks. Including it in the regulations 
helped indicate to landowners the land management opportunities were available. Terry said 
most farmers can’t afford to do the bobolink program as they need to hay the fields. Although 
Tier 3 is good for grassland birds, Tier 1 and 2 are much more valuable. Jens said grassland bird 
habitat was very specific and easy to disrupt and there is no town in Vermont that regulates for 
grassland birds. The regulation simply flags that the habitat could exist. David said that the WCC 
should ensure that farmers should understand that this is not a reason to object to 
incorporation of the maps into the town plan: they don’t have to manage their farmland for 
grassland bird habitat. The Commission discussed that Tier 3 was protected by the 75% open 
space requirement and avoidance for fragmentation. Gary suggested changing 27.5.2.3 to 
change ‘with appropriate management practices’ to ‘if desired by the landowner’.  
 

5.6. The Commission suggested that the Tier 3 standard be changed to cluster instead of avoid 
fragmentation. Jens noted that Tier 3 was of limited value so could be removed without 
affecting wildlife habitat. The Commission said they would review whether to keep Tier 3. 
95Gary suggested that we could require HOAs to mow once a year.  
 

5.7. Jens and the Commission recommended that 27.5.8.1 could be removed as it had “to the 
greatest extent possible” language. Simon said he’d review removing the entire paragraph. The 
Tier 1 habitat standard was very strong. Jens and the Commission discussed that ‘shall’ and 
‘must’ were much better than ‘may’. 
  

5.8. The Commission discussed that 27.5.14.1 for 95% Tier 3 should be amended to include examples 
of how avoiding fragmentation could work (such as locating structures close to driveways, or 
existing structures) as the language currently contained a lot of ‘where possible’ caveats. We 
could include that the applicant demonstrate the steps that they’ve taken to comply. 
  

5.9. The commission recommended removing the term PUD from 27.5.14.2. They suggested 
including that replacement planting of at least the equivalent acre for acre. The regulations 
could include a reference that the HDA confirm the value of the SWHA that is being lost and 
what should be replaced. For example low value habitat might only require acre for acre where 
as higher value might require more.  
 

5.10. Reed asked that when we do consultation we show some example parcels on how the 
regulations would work. These should not be real parcels.  
 

5.11. Simon asked what width was appropriate for a habitat connector. Jens said it depended on the 
size and type of animal and how far they were travelling within that corridor. Generally wider is 
better and allows more species to use it. 
  



5.12. Simon said the road crossing should be amended to reference ‘adjacent’ rather than ‘within’. 
We could also state that driveways and curb cut shall avoid road crossings. Jens said the road 
crossing tier reflected the tier of the adjacent habitat block. Reed noted that driveways next to a 
tier 1 or 2 block are unlikely to be near a buildable area. Visibility and road safety considerations 
may trump habitat protections.  
 

6. Other Business 
 

6.1.  Views from Mountainview Road Review: Simon showed 4 views Reed had photographed.  
6.1.1. View from Mtn View / Route 2 end of Trinity Baptist Church and Michaud subdivision: 

Simon showed the CGI for the recent approval at Michaud and how it complied with the 
scenic viewshed regulations. Eric said the visualization exercise had been very helpful.  

6.1.2. The view from Redmond Road looking at Brennan Woods showed the preserved open 
space which was still a good view. 

6.1.3.  The Ledgewood and Mtn View view: The committee noted that the view from 
Ledgewood Drive was excellent which may not have existed in 1989. The town could add 
this view. 

6.1.4. The Glaser and Lawson view: The Commission noted this was subject to discussions with 
the Specific Plan. They recommended a CGI be provided for the specific plan.   
 

6.2. Simon said he would continue his review of the regulations. 
 

6.3. Green Up Day Town Fair will be staffed by Eric, Reed and Terry. Sustainable Williston will be 
attending.  
 

6.4. Simon said that Fellowship of the Wheel were planning on starting their work on the Quiet 
Connector in May this year commencing near the parking lot.  
 

6.5. Reed said that Vermont Master Naturalists had planted another 70 trees at Abazimenahanik. 
 

6.6. Kim said she had a masters student studying the social impact of the growth of mountain biking 
on the northern forest region. They are using data from strava metro to identify hot spots to 
inform use of strava metro for recreational planning. Kim said the student would be interested 
in presenting to groups like the Commission. Eric said he would be interested for the Lake 
Champlain Basin Program.  
 

7. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 8.59am 

Minutes submitted by Simon Myles: May 5, 2023 

Approved by WCC: May 17, 2023 


	Town of Williston Conservation Commission (WCC)
	Minutes of May 3, 2023
	YouTube Recording: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ysLz7_xAAx4

